OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, May 13, 2008

SAU Office
7 p.m.
MINUTES
BOARD ADMINISTRATION
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Richard Bergeron, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Gail Cromwell, Dan Harper, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Craig Hicks, Lauren Kirkpatrick, Tim Markley, H.R.
Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis, Sue Copley, PES
Tom Welden Dick Dunning, SMS

Greg Leonard, CVHS

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 1-13)

a. April 15 & 29, 2008
Stewart Brock moved to accept the minutes of both April 15" and April 29, 2008. Ray Cote
second. Mary Allen made a correction to the individual receiving an award at GBS. The
name should have read Bigford. Arthur Knight abstained. All else in favor as amended.

3. Public Comment
None.

4. Consent Agenda

a. Technology Committee Minutes (Pgs. 14-15)
Dick Bergeron said that we are moving ahead using Moofolio to proceed with student eportfolios.
Training for staff is taking place on a weekly basis. Tom Welden asked that attendance from the
Technology Committee meetings be included in the Technology minutes.

5. Superintendent® Report and Presentation of Business

Don Johnson referenced documents distributed tonight containing AYP data. There is a
requirement that 85% of students participate in the testing. Don said that we fell short in the
results. The ConVal district did not make AYP in math and reading. The high school did not make
AYP in Spec ed reading and math sub groups. The high school passed in the Confident Interval
which allows for statistical differences. Don explained that if you don’t make the Confident Interval,
the next category is Safe Harbor. Several requirements must be met to meet Safe Harbor. The
high school also did not meet AYP in math and reading and they are in their second year of Gn
need of improvement” in reading. South Meadow did not make AYP in reading and math for the
special education sub group. GBS did not make AYP in math and reading. They made school
wide confident level for math. Pierce did not meet AYP in reading or math. They are in their
second year of “in need of improvement”



AES did not make AYP in special education math. GES did not make AYP school wide in math.
HES, FES, DCS, and TES made AYP. PES made AYP in special education by “confident
interval”.

Don said that the state targets are set and included in tonight’s packet. The state has set bench
marks.

Gail asked what the high school’s actual scores were. Don said that the high school received a 60
for reading and a 24 for math.

Craig asked what the catch up was for the change in the math program. He said that he thought
that we were catching up and now sees that only one in four are up to par in math.

Stewart asked what the range was in the state.

Richard Bergeron said that there is a large component of algebra in the test. There is concern that
this is mathematics that we need to test our students on and they need to know to graduate.
Commissioner Tracy will not realign.

Stewart asked if the “Math for Seniors” course will help students know what they need to know to
graduate. Dick said that our curriculum is a no match at this point in time.

Ray Cote said that he hopes that we get something else out of this than just the number. It is
unlikely that any group of students will hit the 100% target at any point in time. He asked what we
are doing and what we can get out of the effort that is being put into it.

Don said that the standards are rigorous standards and that he felt that they are good standards.
He said that we get a better education for the students.

Mary Loftis said that even if things are adjusted at the federal level it is still disturbing. The longer
kids continue in school, the worse they get. It could be the investment of the kids or the alignment
of the curriculum. We can’t just say that it is flawed and not address it.

Don said that the threads must be built in all the way through, we can’t wait for the students to get
to the high school.

Tom Welden said that we need to have our own standards. He said that we were supposed to
have testing to measure one year’s growth for one year’s education. He asked if we were doing
this kind of testing.

Don said that we are continuing with NWEA testing and conducting them twice a year beginning
next year.

Tom said that we need to continue to make progressive growth to catch up.

Gail Cromwell asked if the grades come back so that a grade can be attached to a student. Don
confirmed that we do know grades for individual students.

Lauren Kirkpatrick asked how the subgroups are determined.

Don said that students who are eligible for free and reduced Iunch are considered
socioeconomically disadvantaged. Special Ed students are those who had an IEP at any time
during the school year.

Linda Potter said that in special education we are looking more at GLE’s and the three baskets of
‘need to know” items and we are developing curriculum toward that goal. She said that as long as
we have eleven students in a particular subgroup then they are counted. Other states have much
higher numbers to be considered for count in that same subgroup therefore is not reflected.
Beverly Bacon said that the scores are not on the transcripts that go on to colleges. Dick Bergeron
confirmed that they go into a student’s cumulative folder but not on the transcript. He said that
they will be harder to ignore and feels that colleges will be concerned with these scores in the
future.

Craig Hicks disagreed that the more our students stay in school, the worse off they are. Dick said
that Mary was speaking about the percentage of students making proficiency and that those
figures are declining.

Mary Allen asked if the parents get a set of the student’s scores.

Dick asked Sue Copley to respond to this question.



Sue Copley said that a cover letter is sent home, along with the scores, to help translate the
language of Measured Progress. In addition, she offers time to answer additional questions.

Dick asked if the PTO’s were sponsoring any activities for parents to learn more about these tests
and the importance of them. Sue Copley said that she has not in years but felt that it was a great
idea.

Dan Harper asked if there was any correlation between class size and scores. Tom Welden said
that our classroom sizes have gone down in years.

Stewart Brock asked if the schools that focus on teaching to the test have done better than those
teaching to the competencies.

Don Johnson said that the state as a whole is not doing well because very few districts are aligned
with the GLE’s, only 30% of the states districts are aligned to the state frameworks.

Gail Cromwell said that the evidence and class size relationship is sketchy.

Tom Welden said that this is a good general board topic for a future board meeting.

Dick Bergeron said that he would like to open a dialogue about how we fund athletics. He opened
the discussion by sharing that he continually is addressed by individuals who want to support
athletics. He said that discussion about the types of efforts that each board member is comfortable
with should be discussed.

He said that Greg Leonard is present tonight with an example of a high yield fund raising effort that
has potential to generate a lot of money.

Greg said that they want to use the “discount card” as a fundraising tool. It gives back to the
community by providing a discount. In addition, it brings business to those businesses that might
not other wise receive it. It alleviates them from being requested for donations constantly.

Dick said that a frame will need to be put around it. Dick said that Jon Hall and he have had
several meetings about this. Discussion has taken place about signage as well. It has low impact
to the community and the ability to raise money. He said that he is not in favor of participating
agencies who take a percentage to run such endeavors.

Dan Harper said that it is a good win-win situation for the community, the schools, and the
students.

Stewart said that we can’t do enough to bring in this type of support. He fully supported anything
we can do to bring in revenue. Signage can be done in a very tasteful way.

Arthur Knight asked if the proposed fundraising efforts would be limited to athletics only. Dick said
that it would be open to drama, sports and other organizations. Arthur added that there have been
many restrictions in the past surrounding fundraising.

Mary Allen said that she is very happy that there is support for outside activities. She asked for
more information about signage. The discount card is a wonderful idea because it supports the
economy. She said that if it is broad to include all co-curricular activities then she is in support.
Dick said that there would be the ability to spread out fundraising rather than all at the same time.
Craig said that with regard to signs on busses, our busses travel over 3000 miles each day and he
would consider advertising on busses. He said that if businesses want to invest in ConVal we
should let them. As long as it is tastefully done, he is for it.

Tom said that a lot of groups over the years have conducted targeted fundraising efforts. He said
that the hockey team sells Christmas trees every year. He said that we have to be careful to
protect the fundraising efforts certain groups have developed. He said that the needs among
different organizations differ vastly. Tom suggested that one person oversee the arts for example
and the fundraising efforts to support it.

Ray Cote said that there is a population of people that never attend a football game and would
contribute to a similar fundraising effort from a different organization. He said that the broader we
get together the more exposure there would be.



Gail said that she thought that there was a set of policies to address booster organizations. Craig
said that there are separate categories where fundraising can take place in different places.

a. Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 16-19)
1. ConVal High School will tour Costa Rica from Feb. 19-28, 2009, as part of a
Spanish experience for students to practice their skills in an authentic setting

Robin Kennedy was present to ask for support to take the Spanish Club to Costa Rica in 2009. He
proposed an eight day trip to Costa Rica. He currently has 13 applications. Originally it was
opened up to those students in level 3 and 4 Spanish classes. He has opened it up to other
students. He said that it is a very active trip. They will kayak, visit an active volcano, travel on zip
lines, and have opportunities to speak Spanish. The cost is approximately $2,000.
Dan Harper said that there are some students that could not afford this and he asked if there were
funds for hardship situations. Robin said that there is some time to raise funds. To date, no one
has expressed hardship.
Dick Bergeron said that each class starts fundraising at the start of freshmen year for efforts such
as this, he said that he would double check. It was confirmed that the monies Mr. Bergeron spoke
of were not for efforts such as this.
Mary Loftis moved to approve CVHS students to travel to Costa Rica in February of 2009.
Mary Allen second. Unanimous.

b. Request to Accept Donation (Pgs. 20-21)
1. The Special Education Department has received from the Peterborough Rotary
Charitable Fund, a donation of $500 for the purpose of the Autism Pre-school
Program
Dick Bergeron referenced the above donation.
Stewart Brock accepted with gratitude. Mary Allen second. Unanimous.

c. ATC Plan
1. ATC Improvement Plan

Dick Bergeron said that he has shared three time sensitive phases with the board. He wanted to
break down the phases into manageable pieces.

Phase | of the ATC Improvement Plan — the safety concerns have been shared, addressed, and
validated. The high school safety team met to discuss these findings and all are in the process of
being resolved.

Dick met with the Banwell Architectural firm. Many of the ATC Programs have been moved and
now pose location and safety concerns. Banwell will be met with to address these concerns. They
have been asked to look at the high school as an entire campus and not just the gym area of the
building. Dick said that the ATC is a vital program at the high school. Space issues and needs will
be addressed.

Dick has the revised the Pine Hill Waldorf Lease Agreement which is available to board members
only. Pine Hill Childcare runs a childcare program which serves as a placement for our early
childhood education students. The agreement was outdated and needed some touch up.

Tom Welden asked if Dick was comfortable with the agreement as it is. Dick confirmed that our
needs and rights are appropriately addressed in this agreement and he asked the Board Chair to
sign the document.

The ATC Director is now under the direct supervision of the Superintendent. The Director is still
located close to programs at the high school.



2. Restructuring of ATC Advisory Committee

Dick Bergeron recommended immediate restructuring of the ATC Advisory Committee.

The ability and obligation to review the agreement every three years is in place.

The Advisory should be made up from each area with a board member from each district. They
will examine facilities and look at programs. It is Dick’s intent that every program will have an
active advisory committee. He said that he believes the current Advisory Committee is under a

group that he feels should not be in place. It should be a group that can offer recommendations.
Dick said that restructuring will include all three districts.

Tom Welden said that it is important to include students who graduated and went off to colleges
and technical colleges who can identify how well the ATC prepared them for their futures.

Ray clarified what was being sought for advisories. He asked if it would reach out into the
community. Dick confirmed that it would.

3. Possible New Role of ATC Director(s)

Dick said that the receiving district is charged with the hiring of an ATC Director. All districts are
cited as receiving and sending. ConVal pays for a full-time director. Our Director does not get
involved with hiring at Mascenic and Conant, does not develop budget, nor gets involved with
staffing. Dick said that the DOE stands very ready to offer assistance in this process. Dick said
that the current directorship is not shared by the other districts. We could decide that the current
director directs all three districts. We could also decide that each district hires a director.

Mary Allen asked what the current structure at the sending schools was. Dick said that it can be
unique where they report to the principal or other form.

Craig said that the conflict that he sees is that the current director writes the grant for all three
districts.

Craig Hicks said that the three schools are sending and receiving, in theory, and should have
some form of director.

4. Regional Purpose and Direction of Perkins Grant Funding

Dick said that we currently have a career counselor which is one position which is shared by the
Perkins grant and the ConVal budget. Next year, the grant cannot cover that expense. Duties
include Career Cruising among others.

5. Problematic Articles from the Regional Agreement Including
a. Structuring New Agreement

Dick said that the agreement was structured for an original ATC and is now being considered for
the next model. Dick said that he would love to see Conant become a more active participant in
the program. He said that our culinary arts does not have a program but rather opportunity for
placement in the community. An opportunity for Conant would be for them to try to solicit support
for culinary arts.

b. New Regional Understandings

Stewart asked how the other two districts responded to this. Dick said that Jim O’Neil has been a
complete gentlemen about this and apologetic for their lack of support.



c. Possible Organizational Structures

Dick spoke about the items above. He suggested that we look forward to a stronger presence of
ATC programming.

6. ATC Space Issues

Dick said that we need to provide appropriate space for particular programs. This will be a big
issue. There have been numbers of spaces taken away from the ATC.

Tom Welden said that when we had space restraints, we did go get permission from the DOE for
permission to take this space.

Craig Hicks said that he didn’t realize that we have two or three programs at Conant that are not
accepted by the state and do not have a certificate type program attached. Mascenic has building
trades and automotive. There are eighteen Conval kids that travel to Mascenic. It bothered him
that certificates cannot be gained at Conant. Craig said that we are operating the ATC for almost
all of the students. He said that ConVal owns the building. Since we are spending the money to
man it, heat it, run electricity, we should welcome anyone who wants to come to it. There are
partnerships over the mountain in Milford and Nashua. We can open up the door to other districts.
There could be collaboration.

Ray Cote said that we should ask how we keep the doors open at night and offer additional
courses. Craig said that he understands that people are looking for the opportunity to be given
space to teach.

Mary Loftis asked what the reaction would be to cutting Conant out. Dick said that we would not
cut the leg off. They are not an equal partner. We want to structure it so that it is called what it is.
Mary Allen asked how many kids from Conant come to Peterborough. Dick said that he is
generating a model that he will share with the Board. It will include cost figures.

Gail asked what the mechanism for reviewing the actual list of programs being offered and keeping
those most effective was.

Dick said that the individual program group would meet to discuss the future and the present and
they would report to the overall advisory committee.

Tom said that we now have a game plan to move forward. Dick would meet with other districts.

Tom noted for the record that Bart Goodeve was out of the country and could not attend tonight’s
meeting. Butch Estey could not attend tonight as well.

d. Sports Funding/District Policies (Pgs. 22-25)
Discussed earlier on the agenda.

e. Monthly Events Calendar (May/June) (Pgs. 26-27)
Mary Allen asked when the Energy Committee could meet . She suggested June 11" at 7:00 p.m.
Budget & Property will meet next on May 19" at 7:00 p.m. The grounds for a good discussion
about the master plan will be set.
Don Johnson said that the Wellness Committee will meet on May 21 at 7:00 p.m.
Stewart Brock said that the Communication Committee will meet next on May 20" to discuss the
campus plan.



The Education Sub-Committee would like to meet next on June 2™ at 7:00 p.m.
Mary Allen said that the next Professional Development meeting will take place on June 2" and
they will conduct all of their meetings from then on with Moodle.

Dick Bergeron announced that the Principal of AES, Deb Lesure has submitted a letter of
resignation. He read her letter and wished her well and a thanked her.

Craig Hicks moved to accept the resignation of Deb Lesure. Arthur Knight second.
Unanimous.

Dick said that It was with great pleasure and honor that he could nominate Jim Grant for the
NHSAA Champions for Children award. Jim Grant has been selected to receive this award for the
Southwest Region. Jim will be presented with this award next week.

Mary Allen asked what steps will take place to replace Deb Lesure.
Dick said that he sees this as an opportunity to host and advertise for the best available candidate.
The search should be conducted by a representative group.

6. Old Business
a. Adoption of Policies (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 28-35)
1. EB — Safety Program
Don Johnson tabled this policy for further review.

2. EBBB - Accident Reports
Don Johnson tabled this policy for further review.

3. EEA - Student Transportation Services
Don Johnson tabled this policy for further review.

4. EEAE — School Bus Safety Program
Don Johnson tabled this policy for further review.

5. EEAEA — Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing
Don Johnson tabled this policy for further review.

6. EH — Data Management
Don referenced the policy and said that no change has been made since its first reading. He
recommended approval of these policies.

7. EHB — Data/Records Retention
Don referenced the policy and said that no change has been made since its first reading. He
recommended approval of these policies.

Gail Cromwell moved to adopt policies EH (Data Management) and EHB (Data/Records
Retention). Stewart Brock second. Unanimous.

7. New Business
a. Group Emails



Tom said that there has been legislation about communication and privacy issues. He said that we
(the Board) need to be careful not to conduct a “school board meeting online”. It is important not to
have dialogue on line. If response is needed, it should be centralized.

It is very easy to hit the “reply to all” button which would be considered a public meeting.

Beverly Bacon said that for the past two years, we have purchased hanging flower baskets to raffle
off to staff at the end of the year celebration. This year the end of the year program will be
different.

Dick Bergeron said that on the last half-day, we will have a social experience to honor our retirees.
At this event, the four baskets will be raffled off. We are looking forward to rekindling the interest
in this event.

Beverly said that the baskets have been well received in the past. She welcomed donations. Tom
and Dick confirmed that the expense would come out of the budget this year. Beverly was
thankful.

Stewart said that a “thank you” was run to all teachers for teacher appreciation in the local
newspaper this week. It is an expense that was covered by the SAU. We wanted to publicly thank
the teachers for all that they do.

8. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)
None.

9. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3.llc
a. Personnel
1. Negotiations

Dan Harper moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,lic for
matters of personnel at 9:19 p.m. Unanimous on aroll call vote.

Craig Hicks moved to exit non-public session at 9:48 p.m. Arthur Knight second.
Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to seal the minutes of non-public session and conclude tonight®
meeting at 9:48 p.m. Arthur Knight second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



